
 
United Nations Conference on Succession of States  

in respect of State Property, Archives and Debts 
 

Vienna, Austria 
1 March - 8 April 1983 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.117/C.1/SR.37 

 
37th meeting of the Committee of the Whole 

 
 
 

Extract from Volume I of the Official Records of the United Nations Conference on Succession of 
States in respect of State Property, Archives and Debts (Summary records of the plenary 

meetings and of the meetings of the Committee of the Whole) 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 



37th meeting—28 March 1983

37th meeting
Monday, 28 March 1983, at 3.15 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia)

231

Consideration of the question of succession of States
in respect of State property, archives and debts, in
accordance with General Assembly resolutions 36/113
of 10 December 1981 and 37/11 of 15 November
1982 (continued) (A/CONF. 117/4, A/CONF.117/5 and
Add.l)

[Agenda item 11]

Article 36 (Newly independent State) (concluded)
1. Mr. MAAS GEESTERANUS (Netherlands) said
that his delegation accepted the idea behind the Inter-
national Law Commission's draft article that a special
r6gime should be applicable to State debts in cases
where the successor State was a newly independent
State. That regime would in principle favour the newly
independent State. Nevertheless, it considered that the
article as drafted might well create more problems than
it solved, as other delegations had also pointed out.
2. The discussion had largely reflected the experience
of the States represented at the Conference rather than
future possibilities. Some 65 delegations represented
States which, in principle, could never become newly
independent States but might well become predecessor
States or, in any case, third States.
3. Seen in that light, article 36 was one of the less
important articles of the convention compared with,
say, articles 35, 37, 38 and 39. Serious consideration
should therefore be given to the appeals for compro-
mise that had been made, in particular those of Swit-
zerland and Austria. A majority vote would not help
the Conference to progress.

4. Mr. TEPAVITCHAROV (Bulgaria) said that his
delegation was surprised at the sharp division of opin-
ion expressed during the debate on article 36, since
paragraph (2) of the commentary clearly indicated that
the provision regulated a distinct type of succession of
States and should be considered as an exception to the
general rule on succession. The distinction was linked
with the process of decolonization which, by definition,
meant that the two entities involved were dejure and
de facto on an unequal footing. Nobody had objected
to that premise. The International Law Commission's
text was an attempt to remedy the legal and factual
inequality.

5. One delegation had mentioned that decolonization
was always a process of divorce between poor and rich,
defined in terms of a State's level of economic develop-
ment and not in terms of the existence or lack of natural
resources. That argument in fact justified the approach
adopted by the International Law Commission.

6. The text of article 36 was inspired by the world
community's universally supported efforts to abolish
colonial domination and create favourable conditions
for the development of each nation on the basis of the
principles of equality and sovereign independence. His
delegation therefore approved of the general rule in

article 36 that no State debt of the predecessor State
should pass to the newly independent State.
7. The idea of granting a more favourable regime to a
newly independent State had met with two kinds of
objections. The first was based on the alleged need for
balanced compromise in the text itself; he emphasized
that his delegation had not been convinced of the need
for such a balance. It was not clear which debts as-
sumed by the predecessor State—a colonial Power—
should pass to the newly independent State without its
agreement and who as a creditor would accept such a
passage. The passage of State property and State ar-
chives was assumed by the successor State, but in that
case no third party would be affected.

8. The second category of objections was based on
the argument that, by providing for different regimes,
the Conference would be exceeding the process of cod-
ifying international law and that the International Law
Commission's aim was the progressive development of
international law. His delegation found it hard to under-
stand why that should be considered as a defect.

9. The law of decolonization in respect of the succes-
sion of States from the point of view of a predecessor
State was a contractual law reflecting the experience of
former colonial Powers and not that of the majority of
States represented at the Conference. His delegation
agreed that there was no rule of jus cogens in that
matter, which was why the International Law Commis-
sion had treated the particular case as a distinct type of
succession of States likely to occur only in future colo-
nial situations. The process of decolonization in itself
was independent of the legal regime governing the pas-
sage of State debts to the newly independent State.
Accession to independence by a State could not be
subject to the acceptance by a colonial Power of the
conventional regime of succession of States which the
Conference was trying to establish.

10. Hi s delegation did not see the connection between
the viability of the convention and the process of de-
colonization. Since agreement on the passing of State
debts would be the exception to the rule, but not neces-
sarily the exception to the actual process of succession
of States, it had difficulty in supporting any amendment
emphasizing the exception and transforming it into a
rule. Accordingly it supported the article as proposed
by the International Law Commission.

11. Mr. GUNEY (Turkey) said that his delegation
was prepared to accept the rule providing a special
regime for newly independent States in respect of the
transmissibility of State debts. Article 36 as it stood was
well-balanced and did not go beyond the idea of offering
reasonable protection to newly independent States.
12. The International Law Commission had decided
to adopt as a basic rule the non-transmissibility of debts
from the predecessor State to the newly independent
successor State but did not rule out the possibility of a



232 Summary records—Committee of the Whole

valid, freely concluded agreement between such States
in the matter of State debts, on condition that there was
a link between the debt connected with the activity of
the predecessor State in the territory to which the suc-
cession of States related, and the property, rights and
interests which passed to the newly independent State.
Those two conditions had the advantage of encouraging
the conclusion of agreements.
13. Paragraph 2 of article 36 met the concern of newly
independent States. His delegation endorsed the point
made in paragraph (39) of the commentary that inter-
national law could not be codified or progressively
developed in isolation from the contemporary eco-
nomic and political context.
14. His delegation had no difficulty in accepting arti-
cle 36 as drafted by the International Law Commission.
15. Mr. NDIAYE (Senegal) said that his delegation
was in favour of the text of article 36 as it stood. It did
not require the predecessor State to be excessively
generous to the successor State. Admittedly, the article
stated, first, the principle of the non-transmissibility of
debts from the predecessor to the newly independent
successor State, but then it proceeded to provide for an
exception to the principle if there was a link between
the debts connected with the activity of the predeces-
sor State in the territory in question and the prop-
erty, rights and interests which passed to the succes-
sor State. Surely it was hardly conceivable that any
other debts than those referred to could be transmitted.
The predecessor State in such cases would inevitably
be a colonial Power, and hence it was proper to require
a link of the kind.mentioned in the article. Without
the safeguard clause stipulating such a link, the eco-
nomic viability of the newly independent successor
State would be gravely prejudiced.

16. The Italian delegation's amendment (A/CONF.
117/C. 1/L.52) was designed to give priority treatment to
debts relating to public works; in the opinion of the
Senegalese delegation the priority was not justified.
Public works were not always easy to define or of
benefit to the successor State. In any case, the provi-
sion concerning a link between State debts and activity
in a given territory was applicable equally to debts
arising out of the execution of public works. The Inter-
national Law Commission's draft would apply to all
State debts where such a link existed.
17. It had been argued that certain expressions used in
paragraph 2 were not of a strictly juridical nature. In
reply to that argument he said that the expressions in
question were perfectly familiar to practitioners and
undoubtedly carried a precise objective meaning.
18. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) thanked those
who had supported his delegation's amendment
(A/CONF. 117/C. 1/L.51). He wished to make it quite
clear that his delegation accepted the idea of a special
regime for a newly independent State in the case of a
succession of States, particularly where State debts
were concerned; and also that it believed that per-
manent sovereignty over natural resources was part
of the international legal order.

19. With respect to the objections raised to his del-
egation's amendment, some speakers had mentioned
that it was similar to the Netherlands amendment to

paragraph 4 of article 14 (A/CONF. 117/C. 1/L. 18) and
open to the same objections as had been mentioned in
the earlier discussion.
20. He pointed out that there were considerable dif-
ferences between the two amendments, as several
other speakers, including the representative of Tunisia
(14th meeting), had noted. The Greek amendment was
in fact identical to the first part of paragraph 2 of the
International Law Commission's text, except that it
replaced the words "shall not infringe the principle'' by
"shall pay regard to the principle", and added the
words "in accordance with international law" at the
end of the sentence. His delegation considered the lat-
ter words to be essential, for they would constitute a
common denominator for the acceptance of the princi-
ple in question.
21. It considered the argument that international
law should conform to the principle of permanent sov-
ereignty over natural resources to be somewhat rem-
iniscent of certain contentious arguments advanced
before the Second World War with regard to the so-
called "imperative of vital space".
22. There was no basis for the argument that the
Greek amendment to article 36 would weaken the prin-
ciple of jus cogens set forth therein. A rule of jus cogens
could not be created using a set formula. Even an
international convention could not engender such a
rule; it always had to be derived from international
custom recognized by the international community as
a whole.
23. In reply to the arguments against his delega-
tion's proposal that the final phrase of paragraph 2 of
the International Law Commission's text should be
omitted, he said that article 36 already provided suf-
ficient, even excessive, protection for newly indepen-
dent States and the phrase in question was not therefore
indispensable. In that respect, he agreed with the com-
ments of the representatives of Canada and Switzerland
at the previous meeting.
24. Mr. MOCHI ONORY DI SALUZZO (Italy) said
that his delegation's amendment to article 36 was in-
tended to make an improvement and provide a com-
promise solution to some of the problems arising from
the article for the many delegations which, like his own,
felt that the provisions of article 36 as drafted by the
International Law Commission could represent a de-
velopment of international law but were certainly not a
codification of existing international law. However, in
view of the opposition which the amendment had met in
the Committee, he had decided to withdraw it. In doing
so, he wished to make it clear that his delegation's con-
cern to improve the article should on no account be
construed, even a contrario, as acceptance of the text
thereof.
25. The CHAIRMAN noted that the Italian delega-
tion's amendment had been withdrawn and invited
the Committee to vote on the Greek delegation's
amendment.

The amendment was rejected by 33 votes to 21, with
3 abstentions.

Article 36 as proposed by the International Law
Commission was adopted by 39 votes to 21 and referred
to the Drafting Committee.



37th meeting—28 March 1983 233

26. Mr. PIRIS (France), speaking in explanation of
vote, said that his delegation had voted in favour of the
Greek amendment and against the International Law
Commission's draft for reasons explained in the course
of the discussion on article 36 (36th meeting). He noted
that, once again, no account had been taken of the
views of alarge minority of the States represented at the
Conference and that, in spite of numerous appeals to
the contrary, the Committee had continued, by major-
ity vote, to adopt the International Law Commission's
draft, article by article, without any attempt at negotia-
tion or compromise.

27. Replying to the delegation which had cited para-
graphs (32) to (37) of the commentary to article 36, he
said that those paragraphs reflected the views of only
one party to a succession of States and not those of the
other.

28. Mr. MONNIER (Switzerland) said that, by listing
numerous conditions of very wide scope which agree-
ments between the predecessor State and the successor
State had to satisfy in respect of the passing of debts,
article 36 gave rise to legal difficulties. Those con-
ditions, whose effect was practically to paralyse the
contractual freedom of the States concerned, were
not likely to encourage States to settle the matter by
agreement, a result contrary to what he gathered was
the International Law Commission's intention that they
should be encouraged to do so.

29. Moreover, he could not agree to the principle of
the permanent sovereignty of every people over its
wealth and natural resources being presented or inter-
preted as a standard of the law of nations. Article 36
thus gave rise to fundamental objections of the same
nature as articles 14,26,28 and 29, and he had therefore
voted against it although, in principle, he considered a
special regime for newly independent States in respect
of State debts to be justified.

30. Mr. BROWN (Australia) said that his delegation
had voted against article 36 because the expression
"fundamental economic equilibria" in paragraph 2 was
so uncertain of meaning that it made possible applica-
tions unacceptably wide.

31. Mr. KIRSCH (Canada) said that, although he
agreed that special treatment in respect of the passing
of State debts should be given to newly independent
States, he had voted against article 36.

32. For reasons stated in connection with article 14
as well as in the discussion on article 36, the inclusion
of a binding rule subordinating an agreement between
States to recognition of the principle of sovereignty
over wealth and natural resources was not acceptable
to his delegation. Furthermore, the legal scope of the
article and the precise meaning of several of the expres-
sions employed remained unclear, and numerous re-
quests for an explanation of their import had remained
unanswered. Nor had he received a reply to the ques-
tion which he had asked at the previous meeting,
namely, what in article 36 could encourage a predeces-
sor State succeeded by a newly independent State to
become a party to the proposed convention rather than
to proceed on the basis of general international law. In
the absence of an answer to that question, he had been

obliged to conclude that the alleged balance in article 36
was purely theoretical.
33. Mr. EN AY AT (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that
his delegation had supported without any reservations
the article proposed by the International Law Commis-
sion, which was designed to harmonize international
law with modern political reality.
34. After expressing full agreement with the four con-
ditions which the article stipulated for the validity of
the devolution agreement between the newly indepen-
dent State and the former administering Power in the
matter of the passing of State debts, he reiterated the
statement he had made in connection with article 14
(16th meeting) to the effect that in his delegation's
opinion the expression "newly independent State"
meant not only a State that had been legally and insti-
tutionally dependent on a colonial Power, but also a
newly independent State that had been controlled by
a foreign Power and had acquired its sovereignty after
the period of dependence.

35. Replying to a question by the representative of
Viet Nam, he confirmed that, in his delegation's view,
the expression should in future be applied to countries
other than those emerging from colonial domination
in the traditional sense.
36. Mr. MURAKAMI (Japan) said that he had voted
against article 36 because he strongly objected to its
paragraph 2.
37. With regard to paragraph 1, he wished to put on
record his delegation's understanding that the phrase
beginning with the words "in view of the link" did not
in any way affect the validity of an agreement con-
cluded between a newly independent State and the
predecessor State for which provision was made in that
same paragraph.

38. Mr. OLWAEUS (Sweden) said that his delegation
had regretfully voted against article 36 for the same
reasons, and in the same spirit, as it had opposed arti-
cles 14 (16th meeting) and 26 (29th meeting). While
having no objection to the general principles underlying
those articles, it felt that the legal effects of including
such imprecise provisions as those of article 36, para-
graph 2, in a multilateral treaty on the succession of
States were very doubtful to say the least, especially if
they were to be considered peremptory rules of inter-
national law.

39. For the same reason, his delegation had voted in
favour of the Greek amendment as being a useful com-
promise which would ultimately have been in the in-
terests of all.

40. Mr. LEITE (Portugal) said that he had voted
against article 36 as drafted by the International Law
Commission, first, because it reflected an assumption
that, in the process of succession, the predecessor State
always took advantage of its superior economic situa-
tion to the detriment of the interests of the newly in-
dependent State, an assumption which Portugal knew
from experience to be untrue and could not accept.
Second, as his own delegation and others had explained
in connection with articles 14, paragraph 4, and 26,
paragraph 4, the provisions of article 36 were not in
keeping with general practice and with many principles



234 Summary records—Committee of the Whole

of international law. He expressed the hope that the
Conference would pay attention to the warnings about
the value of the future convention voiced by the rep-
resentatives of Canada and the Netherlands.
41. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) said that he had
regretfully voted against article 36 for the same reasons
as he had opposed article 14 (16th meeting). Moreover,
the new principles set forth in paragraph 2 of article 36,
although designed to offer additional guarantees to
newly independent States, were likely instead to cause
serious confusion.
42. Mr. OESTERHELT (Federal Republic of Ger-
many) said that, for reasons explained earlier in the
debate (36th meeting), he had voted in favour of the
Greek amendment and, after that amendment had been
defeated, against the article as a whole. He regretted
that no answer had been forthcoming to his questions
concerning the juridical consequences flowing from
the formulations appearing in both paragraphs of the
article.
43. Mr. LAMAMRA (Algeria) said that he had voted
in favour of the International Law Commission's draft
and, with great regret, against the Greek amendment.
For reasons already stated (36th meeting), his delega-
tion attached particular importance to the reference
to the fundamental economic equilibria of the newly
independent State. Referring once more to para-
graphs (32) to (37) of the commentary to article 36, he
welcomed the attention given by the International Law
Commission to his country's experience in the matter
of succession to State debts.
44. Mr. SKIBSTED (Denmark) said that he had voted
against article 36 for the same reasons for which he had
opposed articles 14 and 26, and had voted in favour of
the Greek amendment as being a useful compromise
text.
45. Mr. BEDJAOUI (Expert Consultant) said that
members of the Committee were, of course, entitled to
be dissatisfied or disappointed with the explanations
he had supplied. For his part, he had endeavoured to
answer to the best of his ability every point concerning
the work of the International Law Commission on the
subject under discussion.

Article 37 (Uniting of States)
46. Mr. MIKULKA (Czechoslovakia) inquired why
the International Law Commission had omitted from
article 37 a paragraph corresponding to paragraph 2 of
the similar articles 15 and 27.

47. Mr. BEDJAOUI (Expert Consultant) said that the
International Law Commission had considered the le-
gal position with regard to State debts to be sufficiently
different from that with regard to State property and
State archives to warrant the omission of such a para-
graph. He added in that connection that articles 15
and 27 had been referred to the Drafting Committee
with a request for a recommendation on the desirability
of retaining or deleting paragraph 2 of those articles
(see documents A/CONF.117/DC.4 and DC. 11).

48. The CHAIRMAN said that, unless he heard any
objections, he would take it that the Committee wished
to adopt article 37 without a vote.

Article 37 was adopted without a vote and referred
to the Drafting Committee.

Article 38 (Separation of part or parts of the territory
of a State)

49. Mr. RASUL (Pakistan) said that his delegation
had decided to withdraw its proposed amendment to
article 38 (A/CONF. 117/C. 1/L. 14) with a view to expe-
diting the Committee's work. However, he would be
grateful if the Expert Consultant would explain the
reasons behind the use in paragraph 1 of article 38 of
criteria for determining "equitable proportion", which
differed from those referred to in paragraph 2 of arti-
cle 35.
50. His delegation would also wish to make a state-
ment after a decision had been taken on the article.
51. Mr. BEDJAOUI (Expert Consultant), in reply
to the delegation of Pakistan, referred to his earlier
explanations regarding the International Law Commis-
sion's view of the distinction between cases of succes-
sion arising from the transfer of a part of a territory and
those involving a separation of territory.
52. Mrs. THAKORE (India) said that her delegation
fully subscribed to article 38 as drafted. The fundamen-
tal rule laid down in paragraph 1 reflected State prac-
tice, as noted in the International Law Commission's
commentary to article 38, particularly paragraphs (24)
to (27) thereof, and thus had naturally not given rise to
criticism in the Sixth Committee or in the written com-
ments provided by governments. The only concern
which had been expressed was that the reference to
agreement between the predecessor State and the suc-
cessor State might give the impression that the article
authorized a derogation from the principle of equitable
apportionment of debts.

53. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) said that it was re-
grettable that articles 38 and 39, unlike articles 35
and 36, made no reference to any form of objective
criteria for determining "equitable proportion". That
omission left the notion of equity quite formless and
indefinite and, in his delegation's view, vitiated the
provisions in question.

54. Mr. NATHAN (Israel) said that he also found the
expression "equitable proportion" excessively vague
and likely to lead to disputes over its interpretation. He
saw no compelling reason why article 35 should give
some indication of criteria to be considered in deter-
mining that proportion while none whatsoever was
mentioned in article 38.

55. The essential criterion should be the extent of
the benefit derived by the successor State. From that
proposition two conclusions followed: localized debts,
those specifically attached to the territory concerned,
should pass to the successor State in their entirety,
whereas the public general debt of the predecessor
State should be apportioned in conformity with cri-
teria which accorded due weight to the extent of State
property passing to the successor State.

56. Mr. PIRIS (France) noted that his delegation had
already commented fully on the issues arising from
article 38. He concurred with other speakers in finding
the difference in wording between article 38, para-



37th meeting—28 March 1983 235

graph 1 and article 35, paragraph 2, inexplicable. His
delegation would prefer the final passage of paragraph 1
of article 38 to read "taking into account, inter alia, the
property, rights and interests which pass to the succes-
sor State in relation to that State debt", thus making
it identical to the passage at the end of paragraph 2 of
article 35.
57. Mr. HA WAS (Egypt) said that the Committee of
the Whole had discussed at considerable length the
several differences between cases involving transfer of
territory, dealt with in article 35, and those arising from
a separation of territory, which were the subject matter
of article 38. His delegation endorsed article 38 as it
stood, believing that the criteria established by that
article were adequate and more appropriate in that
context than those used in article 35.
58. Mr. JOMARD (Iraq) supported the suggestion
made by the representative of France that the words
"taking into account all relevant circumstances"
should be deleted and replaced by the wording used
at the end of paragraph 2 of article 35.

59. Mr. MONNIER (Switzerland) said that his del-
egation's serious doubts regarding the subtle distinc-
tion apparently drawn between situations involving a
transfer and those arising from a separation of territory
were reinforced by the language used in paragraph 1 of
article 38. In seeking to find a formulation different
from that used in paragraph 1 of article 35, the Inter-
national Law Commission had encountered difficulties
both of drafting and of substance. By its very vague and
general nature, the phrase "taking into account all rel-
evant circumstances" was likely to create more prob-
lems than it resolved.

60. Mr. BEDJAOUI (Expert Consultant), referring to
the criticisms of article 38 voiced by the representative
of Pakistan, said that the article did not in any way
exclude the possibility of using the same approach for
the purpose of determining "equitable proportion" as
in article 35; nowhere was it stated that the factors
referred to in paragraph 2 of article 35 should not be
taken into account.

61. In the case of a transfer of territory, the situation
was clear-cut and was governed by agreement between
the States concerned, whereas cases of separations of
territory constituted a much broader and more dis-
parate category. That was why article 38 had been
drafted in flexible terms so as to cover all possible
circumstances and factors, among which the prop-
erty, rights and interests passing to the successor State
might readily be included.

62. Mr. PIRIS (France) thanked the Expert Consul-
tant for his explanation but regretted that he did not find
it satisfactory. His delegation continued to believe that
the words "all relevant circumstances" in a binding
legal text were far too vague.

63. He formally proposed that, in the event of a vote
being taken on article 38, a vote should first be taken on
the following amendment: the deletion of the words "all
relevant circumstances" and the substitution for those
words of the phrase "inter alia, the property rights and
interests which pass to the successor State in relation
to that State debt".

64. Mr. JOMARD (Iraq) seconded that proposal.
65. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to vote
on the amendment to article 38 proposed orally by
France and seconded by Iraq.

The amendment was adopted by 29 votes to 9, with
26 abstentions.

66. Mr. HA WAS (Egypt) said that he had voted twice
in error, both for and against, because he had at first
been under the impression that the voting related to
article 38 itself. He had intended to vote against the
French delegation's amendment.

67. Mr. NDIAYE (Senegal), speaking in explanation
of vote, said that he had voted against the French
amendment. Neither the amendment nor the text of
article 38 itself was satisfactory. It would have been
better to retain the words "all relevant circumstances''
and then to append the French amendment. The com-
bined form would then have covered all possible
factors.

68. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to vote
on article 38 as amended.

Article 38, as amended, was adopted by 60 votes to
none, with 2 abstentions, and referred to the Drafting
Committee.

69. The CHAIRMAN said that a number of delega-
tions wished to explain their votes.

70. Mr. RASUL (Pakistan) said that his delegation
had originally proposed in its amendment that the
words "in an equitable proportion" should be deleted,
for the reasons it had explained in connection with its
amendment to article 35 (35th meeting). The second
part of his delegation's amendment (the phrase be-
ginning "inter alia'"), which had just been adopted, was
necessary from the point of view of drafting. His del-
egation had voted for the article as amended, since
the principles it embodied were acceptable, but it con-
tinued to oppose the words "in an equitable propor-
tion" as they would impede the settlement of disputes
between States involved in a succession.

71. Mr. SUCHARITKUL (Thailand) and Mr. BEN
SOLTANE (Tunisia) said that their delegations did not
consider that the French delegation's amendment al-
tered the substance of the article submitted by the
International Law Commission; they had therefore
abstained in the voting on the amendment, but had
voted in favour of the article as amended.

72. Mr. MURAKAMI (Japan) said that the fact that
his delegation had voted in favour of article 38, as
amended, should not be taken as implying approval of
the criterion of "equitable proportion" used in para-
graph 1, which was too vague to permit of objective
interpretation.

73. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) said that his del-
egation had voted for the French delegation's amend-
ment and for the article as amended. The reference to
"equitable proportion" was most appropriate in the
context of article 38, while the expression "inter alia"
meant that other criteria, such as size of population,
extent of territory and natural resources, could also be
taken into account.



236 Summary records—Committee of the Whole

74. Mr. HA WAS (Egypt) said that his delegation had
voted against the French amendment but in favour of
the article as amended. It felt, however, that the orig-
inal wording would have been preferable.
75. Mr. OESTERHELT (Federal Republic of Ger-
many) said that his delegation had voted for the
French delegation's amendment and for the article, as
amended, although it did not see any compelling reason
for employing the same formula in article 38 as in arti-
cle 35. From the points of view of both substance and
drafting, such a solution seemed questionable. His
delegation also felt that article 38, like other articles in
Part IV, was closely related to the general provisions in
Part I, which had not yet been discussed.
76. His delegation's position would ultimately be
governed by the way in which other articles in Part IV,
particularly those containing provisions protecting the
interests of third States, would be dealt with. Subject to
that proviso, his delegation had voted in favour of the
text as amended.
77. Mr. TSYBOUKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) said that his delegation had voted against
the French delegation's amendment because it con-
sidered that in paragraph 1 of article 38 allowance
should be made not only for the factors referred to in
that amendment but also for others, such as size of
population, extent of territory and natural resources.
All those factors would have been adequately covered
by the wording proposed by the International Law
Commission.
78. Mr. LAMAMRA (Algeria) said that his delegation
had felt itself obliged to oppose the French amendment
because it was not convinced that it was appropriate
to transplant the wording used in article 35 to the dif-
ferent context of article 38. However, it had voted in
favour of the article as a whole on the grounds that the
wording adopted would not imply that "all relevant
circumstances" would not be taken into account.

Article 39 (Dissolution of a State)
79. Mr. RASUL (Pakistan) said that, in a spirit of
compromise, his delegation was prepared to withdraw
its amendment to article 39 (A/CONF.117/C.1/L.15).
He proposed, however, that the wording just adopted in
respect of article 38 should be incorporated into arti-
cle 39, which would thus read: "taking into account,
inter alia, the property, rights and interests which pass
to the successor State in relation to that State debt."
80. Mr. JOMARD (Iraq) said that, while the circum-
stances envisaged in article 38 were well defined, those
attending the dissolution of a State, as in article 39,
were more complex and would require a less restrictive
wording. For that reason, his delegation favoured the
text of the article as it stood.
81. Mr. PIRIS (France) and Mr. GUNEY (Turkey)
said that their delegations supported the amendment
proposed orally by Pakistan.
82. Mr. RASUL (Pakistan) said that, while grateful
for the support his oral amendment had received, he
would not press for a vote on it since the representative
of Iraq had indicated that there might be a substantive
difference between the situations covered by articles 38
and 39, respectively.

83. Mr. BEDJAOUI (Expert Consultant) said that the
oral amendment proposed by Pakistan might, if ap-
proved, have the effect of eliminating the important
principle of equity in article 39. In the case of the
dissolution of a State the predecessor State disap-
peared, an event which gave rise to a host of problems
quite distinct from those which arose on the separation
of part or parts of a State's territory. In his opinion it
would be unwise to try to establish too close a formal
correspondence between articles 38 and 39.

84. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) said that the
Expert Consultant had indicated that articles 38 and 39
dealt with different situations. The Greek delegation
wished to point out, however, that the International
Law Commission had drafted both articles in virtually
identical terms. In view of the fact that the Committee
of the Whole had adopted article 38 as orally amended
by France, the most suitable course might be to incor-
porate the relevant wording in article 39 but to ask the
Drafting Committee to consider whether it was in fact
appropriate to use that wording.

85. Mrs. OLIVEROS (Argentina) said that it would
not be correct to ask the Drafting Committee to incor-
porate certain changes in a draft article when the Com-
mittee of the Whole had not itself taken a decision on
those changes.

86. Mr. GUNEY (Turkey) and Mr. COUTINHO
(Brazil) said that they agreed with the representative
of Argentina.

87. Mr. TEPAVITCHAROV (Bulgaria) said that
the proposed amendment involved more than a mere
drafting point and that the Committee of the Whole
should take a decision on article 39 as proposed by the
International Law Commission.

88. Mr. MUCHUI (Kenya) said that he agreed with
the representative of Bulgaria. He was not convinced
by the argument that the French delegation's oral
amendment adopted with respect to article 38 should
automatically be incorporated in article 39. The situa-
tion envisaged in the latter article was, as had been
pointed out, more complex than that covered by arti-
cle 38.

89. Mr. OESTERHELT (Federal Republic of Ger-
many) said that in the case of the dissolution of a State,
all property, and also debts, must be apportioned
equitably, and that it would therefore be appropriate
to incorporate in article 39 the amendment already
adopted in the case of articles 35 and 38.

90. Mr. MONNIER (Switzerland), agreeing with the
previous speaker, said that the important element in
article 39 was not the disappearance of the State in a
case of dissolution but the fact that State debts, like
property rights and interests, passed to the successor
States in equitable proportions. In such a context the
phrase "all relevant circumstances" was much too
vague to be of use.

91. Although the representative of Pakistan had said
that he would not press for a vote on his oral amend-
ment, the Swiss delegation considered that the issue
was an important one and that the Committee should
take a decision on it.



37th meeting—28 March 1983 237

92. Mr. NDIAYE (Senegal) said that he had abstained
in the voting on the oral amendment to article 38, but
that he would not object if similar wording were in-
cluded in article 39.
93. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to vote
on the oral amendment to the effect that the words
"all relevant circumstances" should be replaced by the
phrase "inter alia, the property, rights and interests
which pass to the successor State in relation to that
State debt".

The amendment was adopted by 25 votes to 17, with
20 abstentions.
94. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to vote
on article 39 as a whole, as orally amended.

Article 39, as orally amended, was adopted by
62 votes to none, with 2 abstentions, and referred to
the Drafting Committee.
9.5. The CHAIRMAN said that a number of delega-
tions wished to explain their votes.
96. Mr. HA WAS (Egypt) said that his delegation had
voted against the amendment for the same reasons that
had led it to vote against the French amendment to
article 38. However, although it preferred the original
text submitted by the International Law Commission, it
had voted in favour of article 39 as a whole as amended.
97. Mr. A. BIN DAAR (United Arab Emirates) said
that his delegation had abstained in the voting on the
amendment, which it regarded as unnecessary. How-
ever, it had voted in favour of article 39, as amended,
believing that the amendment would not affect the sub-
stance of the article as drafted by the Internationa] Law
Commission.
98. Mr. MURAKAMI (Japan) said that his delegation
had the same doubts about the phrase "in equitable
proportion" as it had expressed with respect to the
analogous phrase in article 38. It had nevertheless
voted for the article as orally amended.
99. Mr. LEITE (Portugal) said that his delegation
had voted in favour of the oral amendment and also for
the article as amended. He welcomed the amendment
because he believed it was not appropriate to use such
vague terms as "equitable proportion" and "all rel-
evant circumstances" without qualification.
100. Mr. SUCHARITKUL (Thailand) said that his
delegation had abstained in the voting on the oral
amendment and had voted for article 39 as amended
for the reasons which had guided its voting in connec-
tion with article 38.
101. Mr. ECONOMIDES (Greece) said that he had
voted for both the oral amendment and for article 39 as
amended. The acceptance of the amendment would
ensure that all pertinent factors would be covered in
each particular case.

102. Mr. SUCHARIPA (Austria) said that his delega-
tion had some difficulty with the wording of article 39 as
adopted; the terms used were so vague that, if applied
to specific cases, they might give rise to disputes be-
tween States. The oral amendment improved the text to
some extent but was still insufficiently precise. How-
ever, his delegation had voted in favour of article 39 as
amended since it did not seem practical to introduce
major changes at the present stage in the Committee's
work.

103. Mr. OESTERHELT (Federal Republic of Ger-
many) said that his delegation had voted for the oral
amendment and for article 39 as amended for the rea-
sons stated in connection with its vote on article 38.
104. Mr. LAMAMRA (Algeria) said that he had voted
against the oral amendment because he considered it
undesirable to place emphasis on the passing of prop-
erty, rights and interests in the context of article 39.
He was also not convinced that it was advisable auto-
matically to re-use a certain wording simply because it
had been adopted in a different article. However, his
delegation had been able to vote in favour of article 39
as amended because it understood that to stress one
factor did not mean the exclusion of others.

105. Mr. MIKULKA (Czechoslovakia) said that his
delegation had voted against the oral amendment be-
cause it overemphasized the property, rights and in-
terests which passed as criteria for the apportion-
ment of the State debt. The dissolution of a State was a
very complex case of succession and there were other
equally important factors to be considered. His dele-
gation had accordingly abstained in the voting on arti-
cle 39 as amended, feeling that although the initial
text might have been too vague, the amended form,
although more precise, was incorrect.

106. Mr. ZSCHIEDRICH (German Democratic Re-
public) said that he had voted against the oral amend-
ment because it gave undue prominence to one specific
factor for determining the apportionment of the State
debt. However, since a specific reference to the passing
of property, rights and interests did not exclude other
relevant circumstances, he had been able to vote for
article 39 in its amended form.

New article 24 bis (Preservation and safety of State
archives) {continued)*

107. Mr. A. BIN DAAR (United Arab Emirates)
announced that his delegation would introduce a re-
vised version of its amendment involving the addition
of a new article 24 bis.'

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.

* Resumed from the 33rd meeting.
1 Subsequently issued under the symbol A/CONF.117/C.1/L.50/

Rev.l.


